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Status    
 
An extensive review of both EPA and the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection 
(PADEP) files was conducted as well as tow site visits  on December 18, 2008 and March 24, 
2009.  A Final Environmental Indicator Inspection Report for the Ephrata Manufacturing Company 
(EMCO) facility was submitted on April 27, 2009.  Results of the meetings and report have led the 
current owner, Ephrata National Bank, to seek assistance under the EPA Brownfields Program 
due to their desire to sell the property to the Borough of Ephrata which has plans to subdivide the 
property for multiple re-use scenarios.  On December 8, 2009 a Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment was submitted under the Brownfields Grants Program by ePhase Inc. The 
recommendations include further soil and groundwater sampling to determine the extent of 
impacts.  
 
The "Current Human Exposures Under Control" Environmental Indicators (EI) was completed 
on May 5, 2009.  The EI has status codes of “Yes, Under Control.”  After further information is 
received through the Brownfields program, EPA will assess the “Migration of Contaminated 
Groundwater” EI. 
 

Facility Description     
 
The EMCO facility operated from 1922 to July 31, 2006 primarily manufacturing iron castings.  
The process involved pouring of molten metal into sand molds.  As such, the facility produced 
approximately 12,000 tons per year of non-hazardous foundry sand. In addition to the foundry 
sands, the facility also produced hazardous wastes including sludge, flyash, and wastewater, 
containing heavy metals from air-pollution controls.  From 1975 through 1982, the wastewater 
and flyash were disposed in a natural depression (pit) on site.  Samples collected from this pit 
were found to contain toxic levels of lead, mercury and cadmium.  As a result in 1982, the 
PADEP ordered the facility to cease all discharges and develop a closure plan for the pit.  The 
facility started recycling the wastewater and dewatering the flyash for offsite disposal.  The pit 
and the foundry sand and slag pile were closed initially in 1989 and completed in 1991. 
 
EMCO was the sole owner and operator of the plant from 1922 to 2006.  The facility closed in 
July 2006 and the equipment was auctioned.  Prior to 1922, the ownership of the property is 
unknown.  On November 11, 2004, EMCO mortgaged the facility to Ephrata National Bank and 
on December 12, 2006, sold the property to the bank.  The current owner, Ephrata National 
Bank, plans to sell the property to the Borough of Ephrata. The property underwent a Phase I and 
Phase II Environmental Assessment and a Phase II soil investigation in support of transfer of 
property.   
 
EMCO occupied a 3.71 acre parcel in Ephrata, Pennsylvania.  The rectangular shaped parcel is 



orientated in a northeast to southwest direction.  The property is generally flat with paved areas 
around the buildings.  Two groundwater springs were located northeast of the property in 1989.  
The northeastern edge of the property was noted to be steeply sloped towards the neighboring 
residential property, which is at a lower elevation.  The western/northwestern edge of the 
property slopes towards the neighboring property belonging to the Borough of Ephrata.  
 
Two buildings, an office and a production building were located on the property in 1989.  The 
office was a small building approximately 900 square feet in size and is located near the 
southeast corner of the property.  The production building or plant was approximately one acre 
in size and it was irregularly shaped.  The southwest portion of the building was utilized for 
warehousing while the central portion contained the furnaces used in the facility’s foundry 
operation.  A sludge collection room occupied the northeast portion of the plant.  Within the 
sludge collection room was a venturi scrubber, a sludge separator, and two 2-cubic yard sludge 
collection tubs.  Immediately outside of the sludge collection room was a sludge storage area 
which had a macadam surface.   
 
In the far northeastern corner was an unlined former sludge disposal pit and foundry sand 
disposal area.  The pit was approximately 16 feet in diameter and 13 feet deep.  Foundry sand 
and slag had been used as fill, covering an 180,000-square foot area.  In 1989, the fill was 
mounded at an 8 to 10 percent slope to an elevation of 20 feet.  This pile was subsequently 
graded and the area capped with clay as part of its closure.  The surface of the clay-covered area 
was paved at a later date, presumably in 1990.  Subsequently, an exposed portion of foundry 
sand discovered during a site inspection was covered, thereby completing the closure process in 
1991. 
 
Currently, access to the facility is the driveway off of Pine Street.  The buildings are present, 
although most of the salvageable equipment was sold, according to the bank representative.  
Within the production building, in a room adjoining the former furnace, the venturi scrubber, 
sludge separators, and sludge collection tubs are no longer present; although signs of the former 
equipment are visible.  Remnants and portions of equipment associated with the former cupola 
furnace are visible in the furnace room.  The outside area north of the building where the former 
disposal pit and foundry sand/slag disposal area existed in 1989, is entirely paved and generally 
flat.  A stormwater catch basin is present in the northwestern corner of the paved area, and 
reported to have been constructed recently.  The northern portion of the property is surrounded 
by a chain-link fence.  An additional section of the fence surrounds a portion of the northern 
slope of the property where some of the foundry sands had been deposited.   
 

Government Contact 
 
 
EPA Project Manager 
Mr. Kevin Bilash - 3LC30 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region III 
1650 Arch Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029 
Phone: (215) 814-2796  
Email: bilash.kevin@epa.gov 
 
For more information about EPA=s corrective action webpage, including Environmental 
Indicators, please visit our site at:  www.epa.gov/reg3wcmd/correctiveaction.htm 
 
 


